
TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority 

Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 


Houston, Texas 


The Board of Directors of the TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority (aka the Memorial City Redevelopment 
Authority) will hold a regular meeting on Tuesday, February 25, 2014, at 7:30 a.m., in the HEB 
Community Room, 9710 Katy Freeway, Houston, Texas 77055, to discuss, and if appropriate, act upon 
the following items: 

1. 	 Call m.eeting to order, take attendance, and verify a quorum is present. 
2. 	 Comments from the public. 
3. 	 Approve min!Jtes of Board of Directors meeting dated February 5, 2014. 
4. 	 Financial and bookkeeping matt~rs, including payment of invoices, review of investments 

and project cash flow reports. 
5. 	 Annual report regarding post-issuance compliance policy. 
6. 	 Accept annual disclosure statements for investment officer and bookkeeper. 
7. 	 Conduct annual review of Investment Policy and adopt Resolution Regarding Annual Review 

of Investment Policy. 
8. 	 Review, revise and adopt Resolution Establishing the Authorized Depository Institutions and 

Adopting List of Qualified Broker/Dealers with Whom the Authority May Engage in 
Investment Transactions. 

9. 	 Review and approve task order from Lockwood, Andrews, and Newnam, Inc. for engineering 
consulting services. 

10. Local Interaction Group report and update. 
11. Lumpkin Road Improvements Project, including: 

a. Report from Memorial City Management District Chairman; 

b.. Discuss landscape amenities and lighting plan; and 

c. . 	Right of Entry and Maintenance Agreement with Houston Community College. 

12. W140 Detention Basin Project, including: 
a. 	 Approve Escrow Agreement for detention pond maintenance; 
b. 	 Construction status of basin package (Phase II); and 
c. 	 Approval of time modifications, changes in work or pay applications (Phase II), 

13. Barryknoll East Improvement Project, including: 
a. 	 Construction status; and 
b. 	 Approval of time modifications, changes in work or pay applications. 

14. W-140 Channel Improvements Project, including: 
a. 	 Special presentation to Board regarding new channel configuration and next steps; and 
b. 	 Review and approve task order from Klotz and Associates for CIP #1734, "Detailed 

Design and Bid Phase Services." 
15. Executive Director's Report. 
16. Convene in Executive 	Session pursuant to Section 551.074, Texas Government Code, to 

deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee. 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and would like to request auxiliary aids or services are requested to 
contact Don Huml at (713) 829-5720 or donhuml@houstontirZ17.org at least 72 hours prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. For complaints or concerns regarding compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, please contact Don Huml, Executive Director for the Authority. 

473921.docx 

Page 1

mailto:donhuml@houstontirZ17.org


17. Reconvene in Open Session and authorize appropriate action regarding the appointment, 
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or 
employee. 

18. Convene in Executive 	Session pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, to 
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property. 

19. Reconvene in Open 	Session and authorize appropriate action regarding the purchase, 
exchange, lease, or value of real property. 

20. Authorize appraisal and/or purchase of real property. 
21. 	Adjournment. 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and would like to request auxiliary aids or services are requested to 
contact Don Huml at (713) 829-5720 or donhuml@houstontirz17.org at least 72 hours prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. For complaints or concerns regarding compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, please contact Don Huml, Executive Directorfor the Authority. 

473921.docx 

Page 2

mailto:donhuml@houstontirz17.org


MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority/Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 

City of Houston, Texas 
 

February 5, 2014 

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority/ 
Memorial City Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”) met in regular session, open 
to the public, on February 5, 2014, in the Commons meeting room at HCC Spring 
Branch Campus, 1010 West Sam Houston Parkway, Houston, Texas. 
 
Board members in attendance: 
Ann T. Givens, Chair  
Brad Freels, Vice Chair 
Glenn Airola, Secretary 
Bob Tucker, Assistant Secretary 
Zachary R. Hodges, Director 
John Rickel, Director 
 

Board members not in attendance: 
David A. Hamilton, Director 
 
 

Staff in attendance: 
Don Huml – Executive Director  
 
Consultants in attendance: 
Michelle Lofton – ETI Bookkeeping Services  
Muhammad Ali – Lockwood, Andrews & Newnam, Inc. (“LAN”) 
Trey Lary, Jessica Holoubek, and Kristen Hogan – Allen Boone Humphries Robinson 
LLP (“ABHR”) 
Gary Struzick - Klotz Associates, Inc. (“Klotz”) 
Amy Harbert – SWA Group 
 
City of Houston representatives in attendance: 
Ralph De Leon and Jack Valinski – City of Houston (the “City”)  
 
1. Call Meeting to Order 
 

Having established that a quorum of the Board was present, Mr. Huml called the 
meeting to order.   

 
2. Public Comments 

Ms. Donna Freeman commented on the lack of detention ponds within the 
Authority.  She reviewed a letter that she plans to send to various persons and entities. 

 

Page 3



Ms. Roberta Prazak commented on the Local Interaction Group meeting, 
including discussions about the Regional Drainage Study (“RDS”).  She also 
commented on the monthly invoices from LAN and ABHR and director service on 
other boards. 

 
Ms. Virginia Gregory commented on right-of-way acquisition matters, including 

the Authority’s prior agreement with the City related to same. 
 

3. Minutes of December 3, 2013 Meeting 
 

The Board reviewed the minutes of the December 3, 2013, meeting.  Following 
discussion, Director Hodges moved to approve the minutes as submitted. The motion 
was seconded by Director Freels and carried unanimously. 

 
4. Financial and Bookkeeping Matters  
 

Ms. Lofton reviewed the financial reports for November and December and 
presented checks for payment by the Authority.  Mr. Huml reviewed the contracts 
between the Authority and LAN.  After review and discussion, Director Freels moved 
to approve the financial reports and payment of the bills presented.  The motion was 
seconded by Director Givens and carried unanimously.  

 
5. Local Interaction Group Report and Update 
 
 Director Rickel inquired about the status of the RDS final report in response to 
public comments.  Mr. Huml said the RDS is moving forward and a report should be 
issued soon following completion and review by LAN and Klotz.  Director Givens 
clarified prior comments regarding the scope of the RDS.  She encouraged members of 
the community to contact her or another Board member with any questions pertaining 
to Authority matters. 
 
6. Terminate Agreement with Spring Branch Management District for 

Maintenance of Westview Esplanade 
 

Ms. Holoubek reported that Memorial City Management District (“MCMD”) has 
agreed to assume maintenance of the Westview esplanade improvements constructed 
by the Authority between Beltway 8 and Shadowdale, which are currently being 
maintained by Spring Branch Management District (“SBMD”).  She said MCMD 
authorized execution of a letter to the City requesting that the Westview esplanade 
improvements be added to MCMD’s Maintenance Agreement with the City.  The Board 
reviewed a proposed letter to SBMD terminating the agreement between the Authority 
and SBMD for maintenance of the esplanade improvements.  Following discussion and 

Page 4



review, Director Givens moved to authorize execution of the letter to SBMD.  The 
motion was seconded by Director Freels and carried unanimously. 

 
7. Lumpkin Road Improvement Project 
 

Ms. Harbert reviewed three amenity design options prepared by SWA Group for 
Lumpkin Road landscaping and pedestrian lighting.  She noted the pedestrian lighting 
options are for the west side of Lumpkin only.  The Board discussed the portion of 
Lumpkin north of Westview that is not currently within the boundaries of City of 
Houston Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 17 (the “Zone”), but is contemplated 
for annexation into the Zone.  Mr. De Leon commented on the level of improvements 
constructed within management districts and consultant costs related to the project.  
Director Rickel discussed the budget for the Lumpkin Road amenity improvements and 
the possibility of constructing the project in phases, with the portion north of Westview 
to be completed in the future following annexation and coordination with the City.  Mr. 
Huml discussed LAN’s design of Lumpkin Road paving and drainage improvements to 
I-10 and the need to finalize a decision on landscaping and pedestrian lighting in order 
for LAN to finalize and submit its plans to the City.  He reported on discussions with 
MCMD and SBMD regarding maintenance of Lumpkin Road improvements.  The 
Board discussed using the MCMD’s lighting standards and ensuring a commitment for 
maintenance of Lumpkin Road improvements constructed by the Authority.  
Discussion ensued regarding the options for Lumpkin Road landscaping and lighting 
amenity packages.   

 
Director Rickel made a motion to authorize SWA Group to proceed with design 

of (1) a reduced scope for Option 3 landscaping from I-10 to Westview only and (2) 
Option C lighting.  Director Tucker seconded the motion.   

 
Director Airola entered the meeting.  Discussion ensued regarding the 

landscaping and lighting included in each of the design options and the possibility of 
the MCMD paying the cost for the improvements in excess of City standards.  Director 
Rickel then amended his motion to authorize SWA Group to proceed with design of (1) 
a reduced scope for Option 3 landscaping from I-10 to Westview only and (2) Option C 
lighting and to request the MCMD pay the cost for enhancements above City standards.  
Director Tucker seconded the amended motion, Director Hodges abstained, Director 
Givens voted nay, and the motion passed by a majority vote of three ayes and one nay. 
 
 Mr. Huml reviewed a Work Order No. 4 from SWA Group for detailed design 
and bidding phase services for the Lumpkin Road amenity improvements for $72,450.  
The Board concurred to table consideration of Work Order No. 4, pending 
determination of the fee for the revised scope of landscaping work.   
 

Page 5



 Mr. Ali reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding from the City regarding 
Westview Road Detention Basin maintenance.  Mr. Ali reported that although the 
detention basin is located outside of the Zone boundaries, it serves land within the 
Zone.  In response to questions, Mr. Ali said the construction contract for the pond 
excavation includes a 2-year maintenance period before the City assumes maintenance.  
Upon discussion and review, Director Rickel moved to approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding from the City.  Director Tucker seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously. 
 
 Mr. Huml said the attorneys for the Authority and Houston Community College 
are working on a Right of Entry and Maintenance Agreement.  The Board tabled this 
item. 
 
 Ms. Harbert quoted a revised fee of $60,000 for Work Order No. 4 from SWA 
Group, based on the reduced scope of work for the Lumpkin Road landscaping 
improvements.  After review and discussion, Director Rickel moved to approve Work 
Order No. 4 in the revised amount not to exceed $60,000.  Director Freels seconded the 
motion, which passed by unanimous vote. 
 
 Mr. Huml reviewed a proposal for a phase II environmental assessment of the 
Lumpkin detention basin for an initial cost of approximately $7,000 if no hazardous 
materials are discovered.  Mr. Ali responded to questions from the Board regarding the 
phase I assessment previously conducted and the City’s requirements to remediate any 
environmental issues in connection with construction on City property.  After review 
and discussion, Director Freels moved to approve the proposal for a limited phase II 
environmental assessment.  Director Rickel seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously. 
 
8. W140 Detention Basin Project 
 
 Mr. Ali updated the Board regarding the Briar Branch detention basin package 
by L.N. McKean, Inc.  He reviewed and recommended payment of Pay Estimate No. 4 
in the amount of $185,250. Following review and discussion and based upon the 
engineer’s recommendation, upon a motion made by Director Tucker and seconded by 
Director Freels, the Board voted unanimously to approve Pay Estimate No. 4 in the 
amount of $185,250 to L.N. McKean, Inc.  
 
9.  Barryknoll East Improvement Project 
 
 Mr. Ali updated the Board on the Barryknoll East Roadway and Drainage 
Improvement Project by Texas Sterling Construction Co. (“Texas Sterling”).  He 
reviewed and recommended payment of Pay Estimate No. 8 in the amount of 
$68,177.13.  Following discussion and review and based upon the engineer’s 

Page 6



recommendation, Director Hodges moved to approve Pay Estimate No. 8 in the amount 
of $68,177.13 to Texas Sterling.  The motion was seconded by Director Freels and carried 
unanimously.    
 
10.  Executive Director’s Report 
 
 Mr. Huml reported regarding his work for the Authority during December and 
January and reviewed a schedule of projects in progress.  He reported on possible grant 
opportunities and progress on the website updates.  He also reported on a change in 
HEB’s rules for use of its meeting room and said the Authority will need to alternate 
meeting locations or identify a new meeting location. 
 
11. Discuss Employment Review and Compensation Committee 
 

Mr. Huml left the meeting.  Director Givens discussed the timing for Mr. Huml’s 
employment review.  The Board considered appointing a compensation committee to 
review Mr. Huml’s performance.  After discussion, the Board agreed the committee 
should be comprised of Directors Givens, Hamilton, and Airola.  Director Givens asked 
each Board member to send her their comments on Mr. Huml’s performance.  Mr. 
Huml then re-entered the meeting. 
 
12. Convene in Executive Session Pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government 

Code, to Deliberate the Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property  
 

At 5:06 p.m., Director Givens announced the Board will meet in executive session 
to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property. 

 
13. Convene in Open Session and Authorize Appropriate Action Regarding the 

Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property 
 
 At 6:16 p.m., Mr. Huml announced the Board will reconve in open session.   
 
14. Authorize Offer to Purchase Real Property 
 
 Director Hodges moved to authorize the negotiation and execution of a purchase 
and sale agreement for a certain tract of real property.  Director Givens seconded the 
motion.  Upon Director Rickel’s request for a record vote on the motion, Directors 
Givens, Hodges, and Airola voted aye, Directors Rickel and Tucker voted nay, and 
Director Freels abstained.  Thus, the motion passed by majority vote of three ayes and 
two nays. 
 
 Director Airola then moved to authorize offers to purchase right-of-way 
dedication on two tracts of real property and drainage easements on two tracts of real 

Page 7



property.  Director Freels seconded the motion, Director Hodges abstained, and the 
motion passed by a vote of five ayes and no nays. 
 
15. Adjournment 

 
There being no additional matters for the Board’s consideration, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

Approved: 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
TIRZ 17 Redevelopment Authority/Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 
City of Houston, Texas 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



MEMORANDUM 

Date: January 28, 2014 

To: Board of Directors 
Memorial City Redevelopment Authority (the fI Authority") 

Copy: Board of Directors 
Attorney for the Authority 
Bookkeeper for the Authority 
Texas Ethics Commission 

From: Michelle Lofton 

Subject: DISCLOSURE UNDER THE PUBUC FUNDS INVESTMENT ACT 

As bookkeeper for the Authority, I submit this disclosure of my relationships with entities or 
individuals who are offering, have offered, or may offer to engage in an investment transaction with 
the Authority as of the date of this memorandum, in compliance with the Public Funds Investment 
Act and with the Authority's Investment Policy. 

1. I have the following "personal business relationships" with individuals or entities 
who are offering to engage, have offered to engage or may offer to engage in an investment 
transaction with the Authority. 

(a) 	 I own (i) ten per cent (10%) or more of the voting stock or shares or (b) $5,000 or 
more of the fair market value of the following business organizations:

No 

(b) 	 I have received from the following business organizations funds that exceed ten 
percent (10%) of my gross income for the previous year: 

No 

(c) 	 I acquired from the following business organizations during the previous year 
investments with a book value of $2,500 or more for my personal account: 

No 

2. I am related within the second degree of affinity (marriage) or consanguinity (blood) 
as determined by Chapter 573, Government Code, to the following individuals who are seeking, 
have sought or may seek to sell an investment to the Authority: 

3. I acknowledge that this disclosure will be filed with the Board of Directors of the 

Authority and the Texas Ethics Commission by~~ 

(SIGNATURE) 

218221 

Page 56



468819 

RESOLUTION REGARDING ANNUAL REVIEW OF INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

WHEREAS, Memorial City Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”) has been 
legally created and operates pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas 
applicable to local government corporations; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has convened on this date at a meeting open 
to the public and wishes to conduct its annual review of the Investment Policy for the 
Authority, pursuant to Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code as amended from time to 
time; Now, Therefore, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEMORIAL CITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY THAT: 
 

The Board of Directors of the Authority has conducted an annual review of the 
Authority's Investment Policy and confirms that the current Investment Policy dated 
February 28, 2012, shall remain in effect until modified by action of the Board of 
Directors. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on the 25th day of February, 2014. 
 
 
 

       
Chair, Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
 
 

Page 57



RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE AUTHORIZED DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS 

AND ADOPTING LIST OF QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS WITH WHOM THE 


AUTHORITY MAY ENGAGE IN INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS 


WHEREAS, Memorial City Redevelopment Authority (the "Authority") has been 
legally created and operates pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas 
applicable to local government corporations; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Authority desires to designate one or 
more banks or savings associations within the state to serve as depository for the funds 
of the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, a depository of the Authority means any depository institution with 
which the Authority maintains demand or time deposits, including certificates of 
deposit; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Government Code, 
as amended from time to time, requires the Board of Directors of the Authority to, at 
least annually, review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified broker/dealers with whom 
the Authority may engage in investment transactions; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority's Investment Policy provides that the list of qualified 
broker / dealers shall be adopted by written resolution of the Board of Directors; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has convened on this date at a meeting open 
to the public and wishes to (i) establish the authorized depository institutions of the 
Authority, and (ii) adopt the list of qualified broker/dealers with whom the Authority 
may engage in investment transactions; Now, Therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEMORIAL CITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1: The authorized depository institutions for the Authority are included 
in the attached Exhibit A, including the successor entities of any depository institutions 
listed therein, and are thereby established as the Authority'S depositories. 

Section 2: The funds of the Authority may be disbursed from such authorized 
depository institutions as authorized by the Board. 

Section 3: The attached Exhibit A contains a list of the qualified 
broker / dealers with whom the Authority may engage in investment transactions, 

468818 

Page 58



which list shall be deemed to include the successor entities of any broker/dealers 
therein. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 25th day of February, 2014. 

Chair, Board of Directors 

AITEST: 

Secretary, Board of Directors 

468818 

Page 59



EXHIBIT A 

AUTHORIZED BROKERS LIST 

Amegy Bank 

Bank of America 

Bank of Houston 

BBVA Compass Bank 

Cadence Bank 

Capital One 

Comerica Bank 

Community Bank 

Enterprise Bank 

First Prosperity Bank 

Frost Bank 

Green Bank 

Heritage Bank 

IBC Bank 

Independence Bank 

JPMorgan Chase Bank 

libertad Bank 

Memorial City Bank 

Oasis Bank/Spirit of Texas 

Patriot Bank 

Plains State Bank 

RBC Bank 

Texas Capital Bank 

Texas Community Bank 

Texas Exchange Bank 

Texpool 

TexSTAR 

Third Coast Bank SSB 

Wells Fargo/Wachovia 

Woodforest National Bank 

This list shall include any successor bank. 

Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



TEMPORARY RIGHT OF ENTRY AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

MEMORIAL CITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AND 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY  OF  HARRIS  § 
 
 This Temporary Right of Entry and Construction Agreement (this “Agreement”) 
is made and entered into as of the ___ day of _________, 2014 (“Effective Date”), by and 
between Memorial City Redevelopment Authority (the “Authority”), a not for profit 
local government corporation, and Houston Community College System (the 
“College”), a public junior college established pursuant to Chapter 130 of the Texas 
Education Code, institution of higher education as defined in Section 61.003 of the 
Texas Education Code, and political subdivision of the State of Texas.  The terms 
Authority and College individually shall be referred to herein as “Party” and 
collectively as “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS,  the College owns certain property abutting Lumpkin Road in 
Houston, Harris County, Texas,, as depicted on Exhibit A (“Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has agreed to construct certain improvements, as 

shown on Exhibit B and as more particularly described in this Agreement, 
(“Improvements”) over and on the Property; and   

 
WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the College has 

agreed to grant the Authority access to the Property and the right to construct the 
Improvements on the Property. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, for the mutual covenants set forth herein and other good 
and valuable consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 Section 1. Temporary License Agreement.  In consideration of the Authority’s 
satisfactory performance of its obligations to construct and convey the Improvements to 
the College, the College hereby grants the Authority and any of the Authority’s agents 
and contractors approved by the College the right to enter the Property during the 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Page 63



Term in order for the Authority to perform its obligations to construct the 
Improvements as described in this Agreement. 
 

Section 2. Design and Construction of Improvements.   
 
a. License to Enter Property.  In consideration of the College’s grant of the 

right-of-way over Lumpkin Road for the Authority to construct a roadway and in 
consideration of the College’s grant of a license for the Authority to enter the Property, 
the Authority, at its sole cost and expense, shall design, construct, and install the 
Improvements or cause the Improvements to be designed, constructed, and installed as 
described in this Agreement.   

 
b.  Design.  The Authority shall employ a licensed architect and/or engineer 

to design the Improvements, such design to be consistent with the College’s overall 
master plan and improvements on its adjacent property and campus.  The 
Improvements shall consist of, but not be limited to, the landscaping, hardscaping, 
seating amenities, and other access improvements consistent with and as shown Exhibit 
B.   The Authority’s architect/engineer will develop schematic drawings, design 
development documents, and construction documents and specification for the 
Improvements (collectively, the “Plans”).  The College shall have the right to review 
and approve the Plans prior to construction.  The Plans and construction shall comply 
with all requirements of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the area 
where the Property is located (“Governmental Requirements”). 

 
c. Construction.  Upon approval of the Plans by the College, the Authority 

will enter into a construction contract with its contractor to construct the Improvements.  
All Improvements must be completed before the end of the Term of this Agreement.  
Among other provisions protecting the College, the construction contract will require 
the contractor to construct the Improvements free of defects, to obtain payment and 
performance bonds for the value of the contract, to add the College as an additional 
insured on property and liability insurance policies, to create no liens to be placed upon 
the Property, and to indemnify the College against damages for property loss and 
injury to persons.  The Authority will cause its contractors to construct and install the 
Improvements in accordance with the Plans approved by the College, in accordance 
with all Governmental Requirements, and in accordance with the contract between the 
Authority and the contractor.  Upon substantial completion, the Authority will assign 
and will cause its contractor to assign all warranties under the contract to the College.  
The Authority shall obtain lien waivers from its contractor and subcontractors and not 
permit any liens to be filed upon the Property.  At the conclusion of construction, the 
Authority will require the contractor to leave the Property in a neat and clean condition 
free of all debris and construction materials.  The College shall have the right to review 
and approve the construction contract if requested.   

 

Page 64



d. Ownership of Improvements.  Upon completion of the Improvements, the 
Improvements shall become the sole property of the College.  

 
Section 3. Maintenance of Improvements.  Upon completion of construction 

of the Improvements, the College will operate and maintain the Improvements in a 
manner substantially similar to maintenance of its other properties within the College 
system.  The Improvements may be used by members of the public.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the College shall not be responsible for any repairs or damage to the 
Improvements caused by a person over whom the College does not have control nor 
shall the College be responsible for or have any liability for any security of the Property 
or the Improvements.   Except in the event that the Authority’s contractor constructed 
the Improvements in a defective or non-conforming manner, the Authority shall not 
have any responsibility for the condition, operation, maintenance, repair or replacement 
of any of the Improvements.   The City of Houston, Texas, will have not have any 
responsibility for the condition, operation, maintenance, repair, or replacement of any 
Improvements. 

 
Section 4. Notice.  All notices shall be in writing and given by certified mail 

with return receipt requested, with receipt as of the date of the signed receipt; by hand 
deliver, with receipt as of the date and time received; and by facsimile or other 
electronic means, with receipt acknowledged.  Notice given in any other manner shall 
be effective only if and when received by the Party to be notified.  For the purpose of 
notice, unless changed in writing prior to such notice, the addresses of the Parties shall 
be as shown on the signature page of this Agreement with copies to those indicated 
below the signatures.  The Parties shall have the right to change their respective 
addresses and each shall have the right to specify their respective new addresses by at 
least fifteen (15) days written notice to the other Party in the same manner as for notice 
set forth in this Section 4. 

 
Section 5.  Authority’s Insurance Obligations.  Without any cost of liability to 

the College, the Authority will cause all contractors, subcontractors, and other 
representatives of the Authority entering the Property under this Agreement to acquire 
and maintain insurance of the following types and minimum limits:   

 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance with limits not less than:  

a. Each occurrence – $1,000,000 
b. General aggregate - $2,000,000 
c. Products-Completed Operations Aggregate - $2,000,000 
d. Personal & Advertising Injury -$1,000,000 

B. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance with limits not less than 
$1,000,000 (combined) 

C. Excess Liability: $2,000,000/$2,000,000 

Page 65



D. Worker’s Compensation insurance, including employers' liability insurance, 
with limits not less than $1,000,000 each accident, occurrence or disease. 

E. Builder's Risk/All Risk, issued on a completed value basis on all insurable 
work included under the contract, including completed work and work in 
progress to the full insurable value of the entire work for the construction of 
the Improvements. 

F. Coverage for debris removal, with limits not less than $50,000. 
G. Payment and Performance bonds for the full value of the construction 

contract. 
 

All contractor insurance will remain in effect until one (1) year after final 
completion under the construction contract except for insurance on defects of 
construction, which shall remain in effect for the limitations period set forth in the 
Texas Civil Practices and Remedies Code.  Insurance companies shall be legally licensed 
and admitted through the Texas Department of Insurance to engage in the business of 
furnishing insurance in the State of Texas.  All insurance companies shall have an "A-
VIII" in Bests Rating Guide and shall be satisfactory to College.  All required insurance, 
except for Workers’ Compensation insurance, must add the College as an additional 
insured by endorsement.  The Authority will further cause its contractors to cause all 
required insurance policies, if necessary by endorsement, to waive any rights of 
subrogation against the College.  Certificates, endorsements, and insurance policies 
shall include the following clause:  "This policy shall not be non-renewed, canceled, or 
reduced in required limits of liability or amounts of insurance until notice has been 
mailed to Houston Community College System.  Date of cancellation or reduction may 
not be less than thirty (30) days after the date of mailing notice."  Before commencement 
of the construction of the Improvements, certificates of insurance and copies of 
endorsements shall be furnished to College, with complete copies of policies to be 
furnished to College promptly upon request. 

 
Section 6. College Insurance.  The College shall, at its sole expense, obtain and 

maintain insurance on the Property substantially similar to the types and amounts of 
coverage the College has on its other properties.  The College may insure the Property 
through a blanket or umbrella policy at the College’s sole discretion.   
 
 Section 7.   INDEMNIFICATION.  THE AUTHORITY AGREES TO AND 
HEREBY DOES INDEMNIFY THE HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE SYSTEM, 
ITS TRUSTEES, EMPLOYEES, AND AGENTS AGAINST ANY CLAIMS, LOSSES, 
AND LIABILITIES, WITH RESPECT TO THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
THE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY PROPERTY 
LOSS, INJURY TO PERSON, DEFECTS IN CONSTRUCTION, AND ANY LIENS 
IMPOSED UPON THE PROPERTY.   
 

Page 66



 Section 78. No Third Party Benefit.  This Agreement shall be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of the Authority and the College and shall not be construed to confer 
any benefit or right upon any customers, residents, or members of the Authority or the 
College, or on any other Party, including in the nature of third party beneficiaries. 
 
 Section 89. Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable by any Party hereto 
except with the prior written consent of the other Party. 
 
 Section 910. Modification.  Except as provided in this Agreement, this 
Agreement may not be changed or modified except with the written mutual consent of 
the Parties hereto.  
 
 Section 101. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement between the Parties relative to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all 
prior negotiations and agreements, whether verbal or written.  There have been and are 
no agreements, covenants, representations, or warranties between the Parties other than 
those expressly stated or provided for herein. 
 
 Section 112. Term and Effect of Termination.   
 

a. Term.  This Agreement shall commence with the Effective Date and 
terminate on the date that is the earlier of (a) the date that is two (2) years from the 
Effective Date; or (b) the date that is one (1) year after the date final completion is 
achieved under the Authority’s construction contract.  The earlier of (a) or (b) shall be 
referred to herein as “Expiration Date.”  The time period between the Effective Date 
and the Expiration Date shall be referred to herein as “Term.” 

 
b. Termination. A default under this Agreement occurs if either Party 

materially fails in performing its obligations under this Agreement. In the event of 
default by either Party, the non-defaulting Party shall give the Party alleged to have 
committed the default notice of such default with the defaulting Party having ten (10) 
days thereafter to cure such default.  If the defaulting Party has not cured the default 
within such ten (10) day period, the non-defaulting Party may terminate this 
Agreement pursue any remedies available in law (Chapter 2260 of the Texas 
Government Code and Chapter 271, Subchapter I of the Texas Local Government Code 
with respect to the College; and other applicable law with respect to a default by the 
Authority).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a default that affects the 
health or safety of any person or an emergency, any such default must be cured 
immediately upon notice by the non-defaulting Party and if no cured immediately, the 
non-defaulting Party may cure such default, terminate this Agreement, and pursue 
damages against the other Party to be reimbursed for the costs and expenses, including 
attorneys’ fees incurred by such Party to cure the default. 
 

Page 67



 Section 123. No Waiver Implied.  The failure of either Party hereto to insist, in 
any one or more instances, upon performance of any terms, covenants or conditions of 
this Agreement, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the future 
performance of any such term, covenant or condition by the other Party hereto, but the 
obligation of such other Party with respect to such future performance shall continue in 
full force and effect. 
 
 Section 134. No Waiver of Immunity.  Nothing contained herein shall operate to 
or be deemed as having waived any immunities to which the College or the Authority 
is entitled under law.  
 

Section 145. Incorporation.  The recitals are incorporated into the Agreement for 
all purposes.  Exhibits A and B, attached hereto, are incorporated into the Agreement 
for all purposes. 
 
 Section 156. Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to its 
conflict of law provisions.  The Parties consent to the jurisdiction and venue of the state 
courts of Harris County, Texas, or the federal courts of the Southern District of Texas, 
Houston Division, for any action under this Agreement. 
 

Section 167. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures.  This Agreement may be 
executed in any number of identical counterparts each of which shall be deemed an 
original and all of which will constitute one agreement.  The parties agree to accept 
electronic signatures and electronic copies of the Agreement for purposes of an original 
and intend that this Agreement be subject to the Texas Electronics Transaction Act.   
 
 

[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW] 
 

  

Page 68



[Signature page for Temporary Right of Entry and Construction Agreement between the 
Memorial City Redevelopment Authority and the Houston Community College System with an 
Effective Date of ____________________] 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the 

Effective Date. 
 
 MEMORIAL CITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY 
 
 
              
      Chairman, Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 
With copies to: 
 

HOUSTON COMMUNITY COLLEGE  
 
By:        

Renee Byas, Acting Chancellor 
 

 
With a copy to: Ms. Destinee Waiters 
   Acting General Counsel 
   Houston Community College System 

3100 Main Street 
Houston, Texas 77002 
Telephone: 713-718-7584 
Facsimile: 713-718-7585 
Email:  destinee.waiters@hccs.edu  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



With copy to:  Maureen Singleton 
   Thompson & Horton, LLP 
   Phoenix Tower, Suite 2000 
   3200 Southwest Freeway 
   Houston, Texas 77027 
   Telephone: 713-554-6750 
   Facsimile: 713-583-7909 
   Email:  msingleton@thompsonhorton.com 
 

Page 70



Exhibit A 
The Property 

 
 

Page 71



Exhibit B 
The Improvements 

 
 

Page 72



 
ESCROW AGREEMENT  

WHEREAS, KFP LTD., a Texas limited partnership (“KFP”), and MEMORIAL 
CITY REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a not for profit local government corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Texas pursuant to Subchapter D, 
Chapter 431, Texas Transportation Code (“Authority”), entered into that certain Post-
Closing Agreement (the “Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, terms not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the 
Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Agreement requires that, within thirty (30) days after completion 
of construction of the Detention Facilities, the Authority will deposit with a party 
acceptable to both KFP and Authority (the “Escrow Agent”) funds in an amount 
sufficient to cover maintenance costs for the Property for six (6) months based on the 
Maintenance Standards to be held in escrow (the “Escrow Account”) by the Escrow 
Agent pursuant to the terms hereinafter set forth; 

WHERAS, KFP and the Authority have determined that the costs for six months 
of maintenance are $5,000;  

WHERAS, KFP and the Authority desire to appoint George M. Kuhn, Jr., Trustee 
("Escrow Agent") to serve as the Escrow Agent pursuant to the terms of this Agreement;  

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, this Agreement is 
entered into on the date set forth below by and among the Authority, KFP and the 
Escrow Agent.  

1. Duties of the Authority.  The Authority agrees to deposit with the Escrow Agent the 
sum of $5,000 (the “Funds”) in immediately available funds within thirty (30) days 
after completion of construction of the Detention Facilities (the “Effective Date”).   
 

2. Appointment of Escrow Agent. KFP and the Authority hereby appoint George M. 
Kuhn, Jr., Trustee, to serve as the Escrow Agent during the Term hereof, and the 
Escrow Agent hereby accepts and agrees to perform its duties and obligations 
hereunder, pursuant to the applicable express terms of this Agreement.  
 

3. Escrow Period.  The Escrow Account will remain funded for a period beginning 
with the Effective Date and continuing until the earlier of three (3) years from the 
date of completion of construction of the Detention Facilities, or the date on which 
Authority conveys the Property to a third party (the “Escrow Period”).   

 
 

Page 73



4. Duties of Escrow Agent. The duties of Escrow Agent shall be limited to those 
expressly set forth in this Agreement.  The Escrow Agent is directed to disregard 
any and all notices or instructions given by any of the parties hereto or by any other 
person, firm or corporation, except such notices, certifications or instructions as are 
expressly provided for herein as well as, to the extent later applicable, orders or 
process of any court of competent jurisdiction entered or issued, which, by lapse of 
time or otherwise, shall no longer be or shall not be subject to appeal or review.  

 
More specifically, the duty of the Escrow Agent shall be to hold the Funds deposited 
by the Authority in Escrow during the Escrow Period.  All unused escrowed funds 
will revert to the Authority upon termination of the Escrow Period. 

  
5. Use of Escrowed Funds.  If, at any time during the Escrow Period, the Authority 

fails to maintain the Property in accordance with the Maintenance Standards, as 
defined in the Agreement, and such failure continues for sixty (60) days after receipt 
of written notice from KFP to Authority and the Escrow Agent specifying with 
particularity the maintenance failure, KFP will send the Authority a second notice 
that is clearly and conspicuously marked “SECOND AND FINAL NOTICE”.  If the 
Authority fails to correct such maintenance failure within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of such second (2nd) notice by the Authority, KFP shall be entitled to direct 
that the Funds be disbursed by the Escrow Agent to pay the Authority’s 
maintenance contractor to perform the maintenance work specified in its 
landscaping contract with the Authority as necessary to correct such maintenance 
failure.  The uthority shall replenish any funds expended from the Escrow Account 
in accordance with this Section within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice 
from KFP and the Escrow Agent of such expenditure.   
 

6. Agreements regarding Escrow Agent. Escrow Agent shall not be liable or 
responsible for the (a) nature or extent of the evidence of compliance or performance 
on the part of the participants; or (b) the correctness or details of any invoice or bill 
submitted by a party hereto. In determining the occurrence of any event or 
contingency, Escrow Agent may request from the other parties hereto such 
reasonable additional information as Escrow Agent, in its reasonable discretion, may 
deem necessary, and in this connection, may consult with representatives of the 
other parties hereto. Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any damages resulting 
from any reasonable delay in acting hereunder, pending its examination of the 
additional information requested. 

 
7. Notices.  All notices or other communications required or permitted under this 

Agreement shall be in writing, shall be personally delivered, delivered by nationally 
recognized overnight courier, or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, and postage prepaid, addressed to KFP or to the Authority at the address 
for the applicable party set forth below or to such other address as the addressee 

Page 74



shall have designated by written notice sent in accordance herewith.  Any notice 
provided for herein shall be deemed effective, (i) if sent by personal delivery or by 
overnight delivery service, on the date of actual delivery, and (b) if by properly 
addressed mail, certified or registered with return receipt requested, and postage 
prepaid, three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail.  KFP and the 
Authority agree not to transmit notices contemplated by this Agreement by 
electronic means without also sending same in a manner set forth in this Section.  
For purposes of notice, the addresses of the parties shall be as follows: 

 
If to KFP:  KFP Ltd. 

1331 Lamar Street, Suite 1350 
Houston, Texas 77010-3036 
 

If to Escrow Agent: George M. Kuhn, Jr. 
      1001 West Loop South, Suite 700 
      Houston, Texas 77027 

 
If to Authority: Memorial City Redevelopment Authority 
   8955 Katy Freeway, Suite 215 

Houston, TX 77024 
   Attn: Mr. Don Huml 
 
with a copy to: Allen Boone Humphries Robinson LLP 
   3200 Southwest Freeway, Suite 2600 
   Houston, Texas 77027 
   Attn: Ms. Jessica Holoubek  

 
8. Modification.  This Escrow Agreement cannot be amended or modified without the 

written approval of all parties to this Escrow Agreement and the written consent of 
Escrow Agent.  

 
9. Governing Law.  This Escrow Agreement and all questions relating to its validity, 

interpretation, performance and enforcement shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas; and the payment of all sums, and the 
performance of all obligations, shall be in Harris County, Texas.  

 
 [EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS] 

Page 75



 
 

MEMORIAL CITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Ann Givens 
Chair, Board of Directors 
 
Date: __________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
GEORGE M. KUHN JR., TRUSTEE 
 
By: __________________________________ 
Name:________________________________ 
Title:__________________________________ 
 
Date: __________________ 
 
 
 

KFP LTD., a Texas limited partnership 
 
By: KFP Management, L.L.C., a Texas 

limited liability company, its General 
Partner 

 
 

By: ___________________________ 
Ford J. Frost, Vice President 

 
Date: __________________ 

 
 

Page 76



 
Project Description
The Briar Branch drainage area covers a relatively flat region north of IH-10 and south of Neuens 
Road. The region has had a number of documented flood events. The areas located immediately 
north of Briar Branch and south of the Long Point Fault line that traverses this area have seen the 
greatest frequency of flooding.

TIRZ 17 undertook a Regional Drainage Study (RDS) of approximately 4,000 acres for the purpose 
of identifying regional solutions to existing drainage problems. The proposed basin is the first phase 
of planned improvements for the Briar Branch watershed. It will serve as mitigation for upstream 
channel improvements (Phase II) and storm sewer conveyance improvements (Phase III) in the 
immediate area of Briar Branch. The planned total volume of the detention basin is 44 ac-ft, of 
which approximately 40 ac-ft (89%) is dedicated for community flood damage reduction.

Briar Branch (W140-01-00)

Status Report February 2014

Project Location

The proposed regional 
detention site is located 
1300 feet east of Bunker 
Hill Road and on the 
south side of Briar 
Branch. The basin site 
is immediately adjacent 
to and east of a major 
shopping center located 
at the northeast corner 
of Bunker Hill Road and 
IH-10.

Stormwater Detention Basin ( Phase I & Phase II)
WBS No. T-17000-0011-6

N

Status Report
Not to scale

The final project as designed and constructed may vary 
from the depiction.

  Phase I - Utility Relocation Package

• Project completed.

  Phase II - Detention Basin Package

•  Excavation continues at south end of basin.

•  Spreading top soil in preparation for landscaping and grass 
seeding.

•  Installation started on pilot channels in bottom of basin.  

TIRZ 17 Mission Statement

The mission of the Tax 
Increment Reinvestment 
Zone #17 (TIRZ 17) 
is to enhance the 
redevelopment and 
economic growth within 
the TIRZ by targeting 
projects to improve 
drainage, mobility and 
the quality of life.

Page 77



Construction Schedule

Contact Information: Contractor:
Phase I: Reytec
1901 Hollister Rd.
Houston, TX 77080

Phase II: L. N. McKean, Inc.
PO Box 130250
The Woodlands, TX 77393

Construc  on Manager (CM):
Lockwood, Andrews, and Newnam, Inc. (LAN)
2925 Briarpark Dr.
Houston, TX 77042

Construction Phases Schedule Completion

Phase I - Utility Relocation Package 
- Public utilities relocated to accommodate the proposed Detention Basin.

August 2013

Phase II - Detention Basin Package 
- Construction of detention basin which involves soil excavation, site utility demolition/clearing and grubbing, construction of 
outfall structure, fi ne grading, installation of riprap, slope paving, construction of concrete pilot channels, and landscaping.
- Contract amount: $2,835,903.90

February 2014

Phase I
• Project Completed

Phase II
• Construction completion February 17, 2014.

Construction Time:

Payment Estimates (Phase I)
Original contract amount $329,821.05
Change order amount to date ($13,472.78)

Current contract amount $316,348.27
Previous payments $316,348.27
Current payment due $0.00

Payment Estimates (Phase I)
Original contract amount $329,821.05
Change order amount to date ($13,472.78)

Current contract amount $316,348.27
Previous payments $316,348.27
Current payment due $0.00

        Payment Estimates (Phase I)

Construction Phases Schedule Completion

Phase I - Utility Relocation Package
- Public utilities relocated to accommodate the proposed Detention Basin.

August 2013

Phase II - Detention Basin Package
- Construction of detention basin which involves soil excavation, site utility demolition/clearing and grubbing, construction of 
outfall structure, fi ne grading, installation of riprap, slope paving, construction of concrete pilot channels, and landscaping.
- Contract amount: $2,835,903.90

February 2014

Payment Estimates (Phase II)
Original contract amount $2,835,903.90
Change order amount to date ($0.00)

Current contract amount $2,835,903.90
Previous payments $1,287,721.41

Current payment due $688,422.25

Payment Estimates (Phase II)
Original contract amount $2,835,903.90
Change order amount to date ($0.00)

Current contract amount $2,835,903.90
Previous payments $1,287,721.41

Current payment due $688,422.25

Phase II - Completing basin excavation at south end. Phase II - View of 10’ wide pilot channels .

Phase II - Top soil placed and layout beginning for landscaping along east side.

Page 78



Project Location
The project is located along Barryknoll Lane between Gessner Road and Bunker Hill Road 
running along the south side of the Memorial City Mall. The final design and construction of the 
project was split into two phases. The first phase  that is currently under construction is between 
Bunker Hill Road and the Harris County Flood Control Channel W-151-00-00 (At the entrance 
to the Memorial City Mall west of Bettina Court).

The purpose of the 
Project is to improve local 
and regional drainage 
with the installation of 
additional storm sewer 
(2 ~ 8’x6’ reinforced 
concrete boxes) which 
will result in increased 
conveyance and  an  
additional flood storage of  
over 4.5 ac-ft. 

Project Purpose

Barryknoll East
Status Report February 2014

Project Description
The overall construction 
will consist of removal 
and replacement of storm 
sewer facilities, water 
lines, sanitary sewer, 
concrete pavement, and 
sidewalks throughout 
the project limits. The 
traffic signal at Memorial 
City Way will also 
be upgraded to meet 
current City of Houston 
Standards. 

Drainage and Roadway and Reconstruction Project
WBS No. T-170015-0001-3

Current Traffic Control 

   Project Limits

N

Status Report

Not to scale

• Beginning of project to Memorial City Way:
All 4 lanes open for two-way traffic

• Memorial City Way to Bunker Hill Road:

Only 2 lanes open for two-way traffic

• Project is currently demobilized pending AT&T   
    ductbank completion.

Page 79



Construction Schedule

Contact Information:
Contractor:
Texas Sterling Construc  on Co.
20810 Fernbush
Houston, TX 77073

Construc  on Manager (CM):
Lockwood, Andrews, and Newnam, Inc. (LAN)
2925 Briarpark Dr.
Houston, TX 77042

Construction Phases Schedule 
Completion

Phase I - South Side  from W151 Channel to Bunker Hill 
- Installation of north & south water lines and sanitary sewer.
- Replacement of concrete pavement, driveways, and sidewalk on south side.

July 2013

Phase II - North Side from W151 Channel to Memorial City Way Intersection 
- Build storm reinforced concrete box, concrete pavement, sidewalk, and traffi c 
signal at Memorial City Way. October 2013

Phase III - North Side from Memorial City Way to Bunker Hill
- Install remaining storm reinforced concrete box, concrete pavement, driveways, 
and sidewalk on north side.

March 2014

Construction Time:

* For more information please refer to TIRZ 17 website

Payment Estimates
Original contract 
amount

$5,874,319.99

Change order amount 
to date

(-$50,081.81)

Current contract 
amount

$5,824,238.18

Previous payments $3,256,905.63

Current payment due $101,158.00

Payment Estimates
Original contract 
amount

$5,874,319.99

Change order amount 
to date

(-$50,081.81)

Current contract 
amount

$5,824,238.18

Previous payments $3,256,905.63

Current payment due $101,158.00

Construction Phases Schedule 
Completion

Phase I - South Side  from W151 Channel to Bunker Hill
- Installation of north & south water lines and sanitary sewer.
- Replacement of concrete pavement, driveways, and sidewalk on south side.

July 2013

Phase II - North Side from W151 Channel to Memorial City Way Intersection 
- Build storm reinforced concrete box, concrete pavement, sidewalk, and traffi c 
signal at Memorial City Way. October 2013

Phase III - North Side from Memorial City Way to Bunker Hill
- Install remaining storm reinforced concrete box, concrete pavement, driveways, 
and sidewalk on north side.

March 2014

• Contract time is 365 calendar days.
• Notice to Proceed date – March 18, 2013
• Contract completion date – March 25, 2014 Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



 
 

 

 

END OF REPORT 

Page 104


	01 TIRZ 17 Agenda 02-25-14
	03 Meeting Minutes 020514
	04 TIRZ 17 FEB 2014 BKP RPT
	04a INVOICE - Misc 022514
	04b INVOICE - ABHR 022514
	04c INVOICE - LAN 022514
	04d INVOICE - SWA Group 022514
	04e INVOICE - Gunda Corp 022514
	04f INVOICE - Contractors
	06 Item 6
	07 Item 7
	08 Item 8
	09 Engineering Consulting Services Letter 1-21-2014
	11c HCC right of entry agreement
	12a Escrow agreement
	If to Escrow Agent: George M. Kuhn, Jr.
	1001 West Loop South, Suite 700
	Houston, Texas 77027

	12b February-briar branch status report
	13a February-barryknoll status report
	14b Klotz Assoc Draft Prop Briar Branch 022014
	14b1 Klotz Assoc Draft Prop Briar Branch Ex B 022014
	14b2 Klotz Assoc Draft Prop Briar Branch Ex C 022014
	15END OF REPORT



